TOWN OF LADYSMITH

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LADYSMITH

WILL BE HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT CITY HALL ON
MONDAY, APRIL 18, 2016

Call to Order and Closed Meeting
5:30 p.m.
Regular Open Meeting
7:00 p.m.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER (5:30 P.M.)

1. CLOSED SESSION
In accordance with section 90(1) of the Community Charter, this
meeting will be held In Camera to consider the following items:
e The acquisition, disposition or expropriation of land (s.90(1)(e))
e The provision of a municipal service (s. 90(1)(k)
e Human resources matters (s. 90(1)(a))
2. RISE AND REPORT
REGULAR MEETING (7:00 P.M.)
3. AGENDA APPROVAL
4. MINUTES
4.1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held April 4, 2016
5. DELEGATIONS
5.1. Cory Vanderhorst, CPA - MNP (Town Auditors)
Erin Anderson, Director of Financial Services

Presentation of 2015 Audited Financial Statements...............

Staff Recommendation:

section of the

That Council approve the 2015 Audited Financial Statements.

5.2. Allen Mapstone - JRA & Associates; Nicole Allen - Atana Management

Asset Management Project Progress Report
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6.

PROCLAMATIONS

6.1. Mayor Stone has declared the week of May 15t to 21st, 2016 as National
Public Works Week in the Town of Ladysmith, in recognition of the
importance of public works services to the health, safety and comfort of our

community, and of the personnel who staff public works departments. ...vueeeeeenunn

6.2. Mayor Stone has proclaimed the month of May 2016 as Child Find's Green
Ribbon of Hope Month, and May 25t as National Missing Children’s Day,
encouraging citizens to wear a green ribbon as a symbol of hope for the
recovery of all missing children and to remain vigilant in our common desire

to protect and nurture the youth Of OUr PrOVINCE. wueeeveereemererremmerrreesmarrrenmsseeremmnsns

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

7.1. Presentation by the Director of Infrastructure Services: Development Above
the Town's Current Water Pressure Zones (130 Metres Elevation) - General
Development Considerations

7.2. Official Community Plan Amendment / Rezoning Application - Holland
Creek Development (Glencar Consultants Inc.) - Lot 1, Block 192, District
Lot 103, Oyster District, Plan EPP44156 (Arbutus HUMP)....ccceveeeeicccccceenneeeeees

Staff Recommendation:
The recommendation is contained in the Staff Report.

7.3. Official Community Plan Amendment / Rezoning Application - Holland
Creek Development (Glencar Consultants Inc.) - Lot 1, Block 192, District
Lot 103, Oyster District, Plan EPP44156 (Zoning Bylaw Amendment)...................

Staff Recommendation:
The recommendation is contained in the Staff Report.

ByLAWS (OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN AND ZONING) — None

REPORTS

9.1. Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905...........eeeeeeeennneees
Staff Recommendation:
That Council direct staff to process “Town of Ladysmith Officers and

Delegation of Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905” as presented in the staff
report from the Director of Corporate Services dated April 6, 2016.

........ 50

........ 51
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10. ByLaws

11.

10.1. Town of Ladysmith 2015 Audited Financial Statements Bylaw 2016, No.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

11.1. Rod Smith, Ladysmith Maritime Society

The purpose of Bylaw 1910 is to approve the Audited Financial Statements
as the Town’s authorized expenditures for 2015.

Staff Recommendation:
That Council give first three readings to Bylaw 1910.

Town of Ladysmith 2016 to 2020 Financial Plan Bylaw 2016, No. 1908 ..........

The purpose of Bylaw 1908 is to adopt a five-year Financial Plan for the
Town of Ladysmith, as required by the Community Charter.

Staff Recommendation:
That Council give first three readings to Bylaw 1908.

Town of Ladysmith Tax Rates Bylaw 2016, N0. 1909........emmmeemmmmmmeesssssnsnsnnnnn

The purpose of Bylaw 1909 is to set the property tax rates for 2016 in
accordance with the 2016 to 2020 Financial Plan.

Town of Ladysmith Water Parcel Tax Bylaw 2016, No. 1906...........cccceeeecmeernn.

The purpose of Bylaw 1906 is to establish a water parcel tax rate for
property parcels in the Town of Ladysmith.

Staff Recommendation:
That Council adopt Bylaw 1906.

Town of Ladysmith Sewer Parcel Tax Bylaw 2016, NO. 1907 ......cceveeeereerrennennnnns

The purpose of Bylaw 1907 is to establish a sewer parcel tax rate for
property parcels in the Town of Ladysmith.

Staff Recommendation:
That Council adopt Bylaw 1907.

CORRESPONDENCE

Request to Locate Shipping Container at Machine Shop for Storage

Staff Recommendation:
That Council:
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1. Consider whether it wishes to grant permission for the Ladysmith
Maritime Society to locate a shipping container for storage in the
vicinity of the Car Shop at the Machine Shop; and

2. Should Council grant permission for the storage container, direct staff
to work with the Ladysmith Maritime Society to secure the necessary
permits and prepare the site.

12. NEw BUSINESS

13. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

13.1.

13.2.

Eligibility for Gaming Grants - Town of Ladysmith Resolution

Staff Recommendation:

That Council submit the following resolution for consideration by delegates
at the Union of British Columbia Municipalities 2016 annual convention, as
it did not receive consideration as a late item at the convention of the
Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities:

WHEREAS not-for-profit organizations make invaluable contributions to
communities throughout British Columbia in the form of community and
social services and community recreational infrastructure, and such
organizations are not eligible to apply for gaming grants to support capital
projects;

AND WHEREAS British Columbia communities which do not host casinos
and community gaming centres are unable to benefit from the sharing of
revenues from such facilities;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Union of British Columbia
Municipalities strongly urge the Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch
through the Minister of Finance to reinstate Community Gaming Grant
funding for major capital projects initiated by not-for-profit organizations.

Water Filtration Plant - Grant Application

Staff Recommendation:

That Council

1. Direct staff to apply to the Small Communities Fund Program of the New
Building Canada Fund for grant funding of a minimum of two-thirds of
the cost of the Water Filtration Plant Project; and

2. Confirm the Town’s commitment that up to one-third of funding for this
project will come from borrowing, with the debt-servicing to be funded
through the approved Water Parcel Tax.

14. QUESTION PERIOD

A maximum of 15 minutes is allotted for questions.
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e Persons wishing to address Council during “Question Period” must be Town
of Ladysmith residents, non-resident property owners, or operators of a
business.

e Individuals must state their name and address for identification purposes.

e Questions put forth must be on topics which are not normally dealt with by
Town staff as a matter of routine.

e (Questions must be brief and to the point.

e Questions shall be addressed through the Chair and answers given likewise.
Debates with or by individual Council members or staff members are not
allowed.

e No commitments shall be made by the Chair in replying to a question.
Matters which may require action of the Council shall be referred to a future
meeting of the Council.

ADJOURNMENT



LADYSMITH

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
MONDAY, APRIL 4, 2016

CALL TO ORDER 6:00 P.M. FOR CLOSED SESSION

CALL TO ORDER OF REGULAR OPEN MEETING 7:00 P.M.
CounciL CHAMBERS, CITy HALL

CounciL. MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Aaron Stone
Councilior Cal Fradin
Councillor Rob Hutchins

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:
Councillor Carol Henderson

STAFF PRESENT:
Ruth Malli

Erin Anderson
Clayton Postings

Councillor Steve Arnett (entered at 7:34 p.m.)
Councillor Joe Friesenhan
Councillor Duck Paterson

Felicity Adams
John Manson
Joanna Winter

CALL TO ORDER

CLOSED MEETING

CS 2016-121

RISE AND REPORT

REGULAR OPEN MEETING

Mayor Stone called this Meeting of Council to order at 6:04 p.m. in
order to retire immediately into Closed Session.

Moved and seconded:
That Council retire into Closed Session in order to consider the
following items in accordance with section 90(1) of the Community
Charter:

e The acquisition, disposition or expropriation of land

e The provision of a municipal service
Motion carried.

Council rose from Closed Session at 6:42 p.m. with report on the

following item:

e Council accepted with regret the resignation of Pam Fraser form
the Advisory Planning Commission, and expressed sincere
appreciation to Ms. Fraser for her dedication and service.

Mayor Stone called the Regular Open Meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.
and recognized the traditional territory of the Stz’uminus First Nation.

AGENDA APPROVAL
Moved and seconded:
- CS 2016-122 That Council approve the agenda for the Council meeting of April 4,
2016 as amended by the following addition:
13.2 Transit Report
Motion carried.
Town of Ladysmith Council Meeting Minutes: April 4, 2016 Page 1
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MINUTES
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-123 That Council approve the minutes of the Special Meeting of Council
held March 14, 2016.
Motion carried.

Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-124 That Council approve the minutes of the Special Meeting of Council
heid March 17, 2016 as amended.
Motion carried.

Moved and seconded: :
CS 2016-125 That Council approve the minutes of the Regular Meetlng of Council

held March 21, 2016.

Motion carried.

DELEGATIONS Joanne Sales, Broombusters Invasive «Plant Society
Ms. Sales made a presentation to.Council regarding the mission of the
Broombusters Society to limit the spread of the invasive Scotch Broom
throughout the island, and.‘the role local government can play in
support of this mission

Ms. Sales responded v:‘tofquéStions from Council. Council thanked her
for her informative preé’entation.

Moved and seconded
CS 2016-126 That Coungil direct staff to work with the Broombusters Invasive Plant
‘ Society and to encourage community support for initiatives to remove
Scotch Broom.
Motlon carried.

De elopment Permit Application - 410 Third Avenue (Forrest) Lot 1,
Block 73, District Lot 56, Oyster District, Plan 703A

Moved and seconded:

That Council approve in principle the following items in Development
Permit 3060-14-06:

5(b) Install frosting on all windows (both storeys) and deck panels
facing rear parcel line (west elevation). The full window and deck
panel shall be frosted.

DEVELOPMENT
APPLICATIONS

5(c) Place address numbers for the coach house building such that
the address numbers are clearly visible from the street.
Motion carried.

Moved and seconded:
CS 2016-128 That Council issue Development Permit 3060-14-06 with the following
changes:
e strike the following item from Development Permit 3060-14-06:
5(a) Modify the second storey deck of the accessory building,

Town of Ladysmith Council Meeting Minutes: April 4, 2016 Page 2
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CS 2016-129

FINANCIAL PLAN
DELIBERATIONS

CS 2016-130

CS 2016-131

using panels that match the existing deck railing, such that the
useable and accessible deck area is a maximum of 7.5m?.
e Renumber 5(b) and (c) as required
to permit the issuance of a building permit for the conversion of the
second storey of an existing accessory building to a coach house
dwelling on Lot 1, Block 73, District Lot 56, Oyster District, Plan 703A
(410 Third Avenue).
Motion carried.

OPPOSED:
Mayor Stone and Councillor Fradin.

Development Variance Permit Application - Oyster Cove Road (Lovely)
Strata Lot 14, District Lot 56, Oyster District, Strata Plan 2009

Moved and seconded:

That Council direct staff to proceed with statutory notice for
Development Variance Permit application 3090-16-01 for Strata Lot
14, District Lot 56, Oyster District, Strata Plan 2009 (Lovely).

Motion carried. : ;

Councillor Arnett entered the meeting.

Proposed Property Tax Values for 2016

The Director of Financial Services gave a presentation on the financial
plan process and decisions to date, and presented options for
establishing property tax rates for 2016.

Members of the public enquired about the process for public input to
the Financial Plan, and the rate difference between taxation classes
expressed as a percentage and in dollars.

Moved and seconded:
That Council

1. Approve the following Option 2 for establishing 2016 property tax

rates:
o Establish property tax rates in accordance with the 2016
budget as approved by Council
o Maintain the same dollar value as 2015 tax levy for Class 4 -
Major Industry
o Maintain the increase to the property taxes for the
Business/Other class at one-half of the increase for the
Residential class
2. Direct staff to prepare the 2016 to 2020 Financial Plan Bylaw and
2016 Property Tax Bylaw for consideration at the next Regular
Meeting of Council.
Motion carried.

Moved and seconded:
That Council direct staff to provide a list of projects carried over from

Town of Ladysmith Council Meeting Minutes: April 4, 2016 Page 3
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COMMITTEE REPORTS

ByLaws

CS 2016-1.32

CS.2016-134

CS 2016-133 n

2015, and the associated operating surplus at the next Regular
Meeting of Council.
Motion carried.

Mayor Stone reported that BC Transit is consulting the public through
workshops and an online survey on options for proposed new routes
for local transit, including an express route between Ladysmith and
Duncan, and a connection between Ladysmith and Vancouver Island
University. Mayor Stone congratulated the Ladysmith Chamber of
Commerce on organizing the successful 2016 Ladysmith-Home and
Business Show.

Councillor Paterson reported that the Heritage Rewtallzatlon Advisory
Commission is developing plans to enhance Herltage Week activities
and increase community participation.

Councillor Arnett reported that he had taken part in the community
Clean-up Day organized by the Ladysmlth Sportsmen s Club.

Moved and seconded: ;
That Councnl send a Ietter ofﬁ,

n s and appreciation to the Ladysmith

organizing a successful C m5mun|ty Clean-up Day.
Motion carried. |

Town of Ladysm Water Parcel Tax Bylaw 2016, No. 1906

Moved and seconded:

That Council read Town of Ladysmith Water Parcel Tax Bylaw 2016,
No. 1906 a first, second and third time.

Mot/on carried.

‘ nof Ladysmith Sewer Parcel Tax Bylaw 2016, No. 1907

Moved and seconded:

That Council read Town of Ladysmith Water Parcel Tax Bylaw 20186,
No. 1907 a first, second and third time.

Motion carried.

John Elzinga, Cowichan Valley Regional District

Moved and seconded:

That Council receive for information the correspondence and staff
report from John Elzinga, General Manager of Community Services at
the Cowichan Valley Regional District, entitled “Regional Recreation
Next Steps”.

Motion carried.

NEwW BUSINESS Project Funding Partnership for Nutsumaat Syaas Project at Ladysmith
Secondary School (Councillor Paterson)
Moved and seconded:
That Council:
Town of Ladysmith Council Meeting Minutes: April 4, 2016 Page 4
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CS 2016-135 1. Advise the Nutsumaat Syaays group that it supports a proposed

partnership between the Town of Ladysmith and the Nutsumaat
Syaays group for the sole purpose of securing funding through the
Farm Credit Corporation AgriSpirit Fund to install a Coast Salish
Welcoming Figure at Ladysmith Secondary School; and

2. Direct staff to work with the proponents to establish the details of
this arrangement.

Motion carried.

Report on Transit Services in Ladysmith
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-136 That Council request representatives from the Cowichan Valley
Regional District to attend a Council meeting and provide a report on
transit service in Ladysmith and results of the recent consultation on
proposed route changes.

Motion carried.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS Resolution for Association of ~Vancouver Island and Coastal

Communities - Eligibility for Gaming Grants

CS 2016-137 Moved and seconded: _
That Council endorse the following resolution for consideration at the
AVICC 2016 Convention:

WHEREAS not-for-profit organizations make invaluable
contributions to communities throughout British Columbia in
the form of community and social services and community
recreational infrastructure, and such organizations are not
eligible to apply for gaming grants to support capital projects;

AND WHEREAS British Columbia communities which do not
host casinos and community gaming centres are unable to
benefit from the sharing of revenues from such facilities;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Union of British
Columbia Municipalities strongly urge the Gaming Policy and
Enforcement Branch through the Minister of Finance to
reinstate Community Gaming Grant funding for major capital
projects initiated by not-for-profit organizations.

Motion carried.

QUESTION PERIOD Members of the public enquired about Heritage Week, recruiting for
' membership on Town Commissions and the Canada 150 Committee,

policy for rising and reporting on in camera items, the Island corridor
Foundation, fire service revenues from areas G and H of the Cowichan
Valley Regional District and bylaw compliance and the proposed date
to begin live streaming of Council meetings.

ADJOURNMENT
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-138 That this meeting of Council adjourn at 8:34 p.m.

Motion carried.

Town of Ladysmith Council Meeting Minutes: April 4, 2016 Page 5




CERTIFIED CORRECT: Mayor (A. Stone)

Deputy Corporate Officer (J. Winter)
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are the responsibility of the management of the Town
of Ladysmith and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in accordance with Canadian Public
Sector Accounting standards.

In carrying out its responsibilities, management maintains appropriate systems of internal and administrative
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are executed in accordance with proper
authorization, that assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded, and that financial information produced
is relevant and reliable.

MNP LLP as the Municipality's appointed external auditors, have audited the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Auditor's report is addressed to the Mayor and members of Council and appears on the
following page. Their opinion is based upon an examination conducted in accordance with Canadian Auditing
Standards, performing such tests and other procedures as they consider necessary to obtain reasonable
assurance that the Consolidated Financial Statements are free of material misstatement and present fairly the
financial position and results of the Municipality in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards.

Ruth Malli, CPA, CGA
Chief Administration Officer

11
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Financial Assets
Cash and short term deposits (Note 3)
Accounts receivable (Note 4)

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5)
Post-employment benefits (Note 6)
Deferred revenue (Note 7)
Refundable deposits and other (Note 8)
Restricted reserves - other (Note 9)
Development cost charge reserve (Note 9)
Federal gas tax reserve (Note 11)
Obligations under capital lease (Note 12 & Schedule I)
Equipment Financing (Note 13)
Short term financing (Note 14 & Schedule 1)
Debenture debt (Note 15 & Schedule 111)

Net Financial Assets
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible Capital Assets (Schedule X)

Prepaids
Inventory

Accumulated Surplus (Note 20)

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 16)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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2015 2014
$ 13,653,298 $ 12,790,890
2,934,237 4,175,786
16,587,535 16,966,676
2,030,493 1,734,074
268,000 276,300
368,849 311,057
391,720 333,530
490,270 480,150
1,769,872 1,477,171
1,060,650 976,699
445,707 558,406
42,952 -
4,920,000 -
2,976,232 3,231,518
14,764,745 9,378,905
1,822,790 7,587,771
89,175,441 80,163,584
107,343 101,293
74,792 74,824
89,357,576 80,339,701
$ 91,180,366 $ 87,927,472




TOWN OF LADYSMITH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Budget
2015 2015 2014
(Note 21)
Revenue
Taxes - (Schedule IV) $ 9,164,130 $ 9,162,471 $ 8,619,254
Fees and charges
General (Schedule V) 1,894,740 1,758,454 1,735,798
Sewer (Schedule V) 791,347 767,278 741,877
Water (Schedule V) 713,268 765,290 713,777
Investment Income 132,452 105,000 130,693
Penalty and interest on tax 123,546 123,000 123,986
Grants (Schedule VIII) 2,534,795 4,330,519 3,504,463
Donations and contributed tangible capital assets 241,914 128,700 143,043
Gain on foreign exchange 131,994 - 95,762
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 164,961 - (35,830)
Municipal Finance Authority refunds 47,299 - -
Development fees 108,075 108,075 111,625
Local area improvements - - 8,922
Gas tax funds utilized 299,363 755,400 261,684
16,347,884 18,004,187 16,155,054
Expenses
General government services 2,270,072 2,361,001 2,240,654
Protective services 1,901,564 1,985,484 1,805,295
Transportation services 1,971,138 2,334,276 2,172,972
Garbage services 485,293 553,020 454,278
Cemetery services 21,492 30,072 23,999
Development services 516,386 691,077 560,900
Recreation and cultural services 2,387,738 2,527,052 2,342,825
Parks operation services 894,327 903,188 836,094
Sewer 1,274,354 1,664,386 1,074,454
Water 1,372,626 1,246,229 975,569
13,094,990 14,295,785 12,487,040
Annual Surplus 3,252,894 3,708,402 3,668,014
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year 87,927,472 87,927,472 84,259,458
Accumulated Surplus - end of year $ 91,180,366 $ 91,635,874 $ 87,927,472

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Operating Transactions
Annual Surplus
Less non-cash items included in surplus:
Amortization
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets
Actuarial adjustments on debenture debt
Contributed tangible capital assets

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Post employment benefits
Deferred revenues
Refundable deposits and other
Restricted reserves
Development cost charge reserve
Gas tax reserve
Cash provided by operating transactions

Capital Transactions

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets

Financing

Proceeds of short-term financing

Repayment of long-term debt and capital leases
Net (Decrease) Increase in cash from financing
Increase in Cash and Short Term Deposits

Cash and Short Term Deposits - Beginning of Year

Cash and Short Term Deposits - End of Year

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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2015 2014
3,252,894 $ 3,668,014
2,512,157 2,436,048

(164,961) 35,830
(88,962) (78,504)
(127,251) (110,215)
5,383,877 5,951,173
1,241,549 (1,275,040)
(6,050) 17,356

32 9,251
296,420 171,550
(8,300) 50,400
57,792 81,817
58,190 (62,712)
10,120 5,937
292,701 (40,519)
83,951 121,711
7,410,282 5,030,925
166,975 6,426
(11,398,779) (4,606,232)
(11,231,804) (4,599,806)
4,920,000 -
(236,071) (231,251)
4,683,929 (231,251)
862,407 199,868
12,790,890 12,591,022
13,653,298 $ 12,790,890




TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Annual Surplus

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Loss (gain) on sale of tangible capital assets
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets
Decrease (Increase) in inventories
Decrease (Increase) in prepaids

Change in Net Financial Assets
Net Financial Assets, beginning of year

Net Financial Assets, end of year

Budget
2015 2015 2014
(Note 21)
$ 3,252,894 $ 3,708,402 $ 3,668,014
(11,526,030) (16,657,483) (4,764,215)
2,512,157 2,485,372 2,436,048
(164,961) - 35,830
166,975 - 6,429
32 - 9,251
(6,050) - 17,356
(5,764,982) (10,463,709) 1,408,713
7,587,771 6,179,058
$ 1,822,790 $ 7,587,771

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

General

The Town of Ladysmith was incorporated under the provisions of the British Columbia Municipal Act.
Its principal activities are the provision of local government services in the Town, as governed by the
Community Charter and the Local Government Act.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
They provide detailed information and explain the significant accounting and reporting policies and
principles that form the basis of these statements. They also provide relevant supplementary
information and explanations which cannot be expressed in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

It is the Town'’s policy to follow Canadian public sector accounting standards for local governments
and to apply such principles consistently. The financial resources and operations of the Town have
been consolidated for financial statement purposes and include the accounts of all of the funds of
the Town.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The
accrual basis of accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon the receipt of goods and services or
the creation of an obligation to pay.

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
changes in fund balances and financial position of the Town. These consolidated financial
statements consolidate the following operations:

General Revenue Fund General Capital Fund
Water Revenue Fund Water Capital Fund
Sewer Revenue Fund Sewer Capital Fund

Reserve Fund
(b) Reporting Entity

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the
reporting entity. The reporting entity is comprised of all the funds, agencies, local boards, and
committees of the Council which are controlled by the Town. Control is defined as the power to
govern the financial and reporting policies of another organization with the expected benefits or risk
of loss to the Town. The controlled organizations are consolidated after adjusting their accounting
policies to a basis consistent with the accounting policies of the Town. Interfund and intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated. The controlled organizations include DL 2016
Holdings Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Town.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and are classified
according to their functional use. Cost includes all amounts that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. Donated assets are recorded at
their estimated fair value upon acquisition. Certain tangible capital assets for which historical cost
information is not available have been recorded at current fair market values discounted by a
relevant inflation factor. Certain assets are disclosed at a nominal value as the determination of
current fair market value was not available. The Town does not capitalize interest charges as part of
the cost of its tangible capital assets.

Tangible capital assets are amortized over their estimated useful life, with a half-year’s provision in
the year of acquisition, on the straight-line method at the following annual rates:

General Tangible Capital Assets

Land Indefinite
Land Improvements 15 to 75 years
Buildings 25 to 40 years
Equipment, Furniture and Vehicles 5 to 60 years

Engineering Structures

Roads and Sidewalks 20 to 75 years
Storm and Sewer 25 to 75 years
Water 20 to 80 years

Constructions in progress contain capital projects underway but not yet complete or put into use.
Once put into use, the asset will be amortized based on the above annual rates for the applicable
category of work performed.

Certain assets have historical or cultural value including works of art, historical documents as well as
historical and cultural artifacts that are not recognized as tangible capital assets because a
reasonable estimate of the future benefits associated with such property cannot be made.
Intangibles, Crown lands and other natural resources are not recognized as tangible capital assets.

(d) Cash and Short-Term Deposits

Cash and short-term deposits have maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition,
reported in Canadian funds using the exchange rate of the prescribed bank as of December 31.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Restricted Reserves and Deferred Revenues

Receipts which are restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external
parties are deferred and reported as restricted reserves. When qualifying expenses are incurred,
restricted reserves are brought into revenue at equal amounts, in accordance with Revenue
Recognition policy 2 (h). These revenues are comprised of the amounts shown in Note 9.

Revenues received from non-government sources in advance of expenses which will be incurred in
a later period are deferred until the associated purchase or expense is incurred.

(f) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the collectability of accounts
receivable, accrued liabilities, post-employment benefits, provisions for contingencies and
amortization rates, useful lives and salvage values for determining tangible capital asset values.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Liabilities for contaminated sites are estimated
based on the best information available regarding potentially contaminated sites that the Town is
responsible for. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in operations in the period of settlement.

(g) Leases

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the
benefits and risks incidental to the ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases. All
other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to
expenses as incurred.

Rental payments under operating leases are expensed as incurred.

The Town currently rents property at 132c and 33 Roberts Street for office space as well as 17 and
25 Roberts Street for a parking lot. Total lease payments expensed for the year were $ 75,837. The
operating leases are annual agreements, and the Town does not expect significant variation from
the annual amounts in future years.

(h) Revenue Recognition

Taxation revenues are recognized at the time of issuing the property tax notices for the fiscal year.
Fees and charges revenue are recognized when the services are rendered. Investment income is
accrued as earned. Gain on foreign exchange has been recognized in the Statement of Operations

using the exchange rate in effect on December 31, 2015.

Other revenues are recognized when earned in accordance with the terms of the agreement, when
the amounts are measurable and when collection is reasonably assured.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

19



TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Town recognizes a government transfer as revenue when the transfer is authorized and all
eligibility criteria, if any, have been met. Grants and donations are recognized in the financial
statements in the period which the events giving rise to the transfer occur, eligibility criteria are met,
and reasonable estimates of the amount can be made. A government transfer with stipulations
giving rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability is recognized as a liability (deferred
revenue). In such circumstances, the Town recognizes the revenue as the liability is settled.

Deferred revenue represents user charges and other fees which have been collected, for which the
related services have yet to be provided. These amounts will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal
year the services are provided.

(i) Non-financial Assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not
intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial assets during the
year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the change in net financial
assets for the year.

(7) Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, determined on an average cost
basis.

(k) Liability for contaminated sites

A liability for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized at the best estimate of the amount
required to remediate the contaminated site when contamination exceeding an environmental
standard exists, the Town of Ladysmith is either directly responsible or accepts responsibility, it is
expected that future economic benefits will be given up, and a reasonable estimate of the amount is
determinable. The best estimate of the liability includes all costs directly attributable to remediation
activities and is reduced by expected net recoveries based on information available at December 31,
2015.

The Town has determined that no owned properties meet the criteria to recognize a liability for
contaminated sites.

At each financial reporting date, the Town of Ladysmith reviews the carrying amount of the liability.
Any revisions required to the amount previously recognized is accounted for in the period revisions
are made. If applicable, the Town of Ladysmith will recognize the liability until it is settled or
otherwise extinguished. Disbursements made to settle the liability are deducted from the reported
liability when they are made.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
() Recent Accounting Pronouncements
PS 2200 Related Party Disclosures

In March 2015, as part of the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook Revisions Release
No. 42, the Public Sector Accounting Board issued a new standard, PS 2200 Related Party
Disclosures.

This new Section defines related party and established disclosures required for related party
transactions. Disclosure of information about related party transactions and the relationship
underlying them is required when they have occurred at a value different from that which would have
been arrived at if the parties were unrelated, and they have, or could have, a material financial effect
on the financial statements.

This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Early adoption is
permitted.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

PS 3210 Assets

In June 2015, new PS 3210 Assets was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting
Handbook. The new Section provides guidance for applying the definition of assets set out in PS
1000 Financial Statement Concepts. The main features of this standard are as follows:

Assets are defined as economic resources controlled by a government as a result of past
transactions or events and from which future economic benefits are expected to be obtained.

Economic resources can arise from such events as agreements, contracts, other government’s
legislation, the government’s own legislation, and voluntary contributions.

The public is often the beneficiary of goods and services provided by a public sector entity. Such
assets benefit public sector entities as they assist in achieving the entity's primary objective of
providing public goods and services.

A public sector entity’s ability to regulate an economic resource does not, in and of itself, constitute
control of an asset, if the interest extends only to the regulatory use of the economic resource and
does not include the ability to control access to future economic benefits.

A public sector entity acting as a trustee on behalf of beneficiaries specified in an agreement or
statute is merely administering the assets, and does not control the assets, as future economic
benefits flow to the beneficiaries.

An economic resource may meet the definition of an asset, but would not be recognized if there is
no appropriate basis for measurement and a reasonable estimate cannot be made, or if another
Handbook Section prohibits its recognition. Information about assets not recognized should be
disclosed in the notes.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is
permitted.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

PS 3320 Contingent Assets

In June 2015, new PS 3320 Contingent Assets was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector
Accounting Handbook. The new Section establishes disclosure standards on contingent assets. The
main features of this Standard are as follows:

Contingent assets are possible assets arising from existing conditions or situations involving
uncertainty. That uncertainty will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events not wholly
within the public sector entity's control occurs or fails to occur. Resolution of the uncertainty will
confirm the existence or non-existence of an asset.

Passing legislation that has retroactive application after the financial statement date cannot create
an existing condition or situation at the financial statement date.

Elected or public sector entity officials announcing public sector entity intentions after the financial
statement date cannot create an existing condition or situation at the financial statement date.

Disclosures should include existence, nature, and extent of contingent assets, as well as the
reasons for any non-disclosure of extent, and the bases for any estimates of extent made.

When a reasonable estimate can be made, disclosure should include a best estimate and a range of
possible amounts (or a narrower range of more likely amounts), unless such a disclosure would
have an adverse impact on the outcome.

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is
permitted. The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements.

PS 3380 Contractual Rights

In June 2015, new PS 3380 Contractual Rights was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector
Accounting Handbook. This new Section establishes disclosure standards on contractual rights, and
does not include contractual rights to exchange assets where revenue does not arise. The main
features of this Standard are as follows:

Contractual rights are rights to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will
result in both an asset and revenue in the future.

Until a transaction or event occurs under a contract or agreement, an entity only has a contractual

right to an economic resource. Once the entity has received an asset, it no longer has a contractual
right.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

22



TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Contractual rights are distinct from contingent assets as there is no uncertainty related to the
existence of the contractual right.

Disclosures should include descriptions about nature, extent, and timing.

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is
permitted.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions

In June 2015, new PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions was included in the CPA Canada Public
Sector Accounting Handbook. The new Section establishes disclosure standards on contingent
assets. The main features of this Standard are as follows:

A restructuring transaction is defined separately from an acquisition. The key distinction between the
two is the absence of an exchange of consideration in a restructuring transaction.

A restructuring transaction is defined as a transfer of an integrated set of assets and/or liabilities,
together with related program or operating responsibilities that does not involve an exchange of
consideration.

Individual assets and liabilities transferred in a restructuring transaction are derecognized by the
transferor at their carrying amount and recognized by the recipient at their carrying amount with
applicable adjustments.

The increase in net assets or net liabilities resulting from recognition and derecognition of individual
assets and liabilities received from all transferors, and transferred to all recipients in a restructuring
transaction, is recognized as revenue or as an expense.

Restructuring-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred.

Individual assets and liabilities received in a restructuring transaction are initially classified based on
the accounting policies and circumstances of the recipient at the restructuring date.

The financial position and results of operations prior to the restructuring date are not restated.
Disclosure of information about the transferred assets, liabilities and related operations prior to the
restructuring date by the recipient is encouraged but not required.

The Section is effective for new restructuring transactions that occur in fiscal periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

3. Cash and Short Term Deposits

Cash and short term deposits were comprised as follows:

2015 2014
Cash $ 12,886,680 $ 12,030,766
Short term deposits 766,618 760,124

$ 13,653,298 $ 12,790,890

Included in Cash is a deposit of $1,157,870 (the equivalent of $852,854 US Funds based on the
exchange rate at the Ladysmith and District Credit Union on December 31, 2015). Short term deposits
consist of short term investments in the Municipal Finance Authority of B.C. money market fund. The
market value is equal to the carrying value.

Included in cash and short term deposits are the following restricted amounts that can only be
expended in accordance with the terms of the restricted reserves.

2015 2014
Restricted reserves - other $ 490,270 $ 480,150
Federal gas tax reserve 1,060,650 976,699
Development cost charges reserve 1,769,872 1,477,171
Total restricted cash $ 3,320,793 $ 2,934,020

4. Accounts Receivable

2015 2014
Property taxes $ 1,243,983 $ 1,277,401
Other government 1,031,001 2,258,560
User fees and other 631,823 615,204
Developer receivables 16,253 16,253
Employee receivables 11,177 8,369

$ 2,934,237 $ 4,175,786

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

2015 2014
General $ 1,007,433 $ 1,284,364
Other governments 1,151 1,039
Salaries and wages 194,764 188,300
Contractor holdbacks 786,222 219,448
Accrued interest 40,923 40,923

$ 2,030,493 $ 1,734,074

Post-Employment Benefits

The Town provides compensated absences to its employees to a maximum of 120 days. The Town
also allows employees to defer unused vacation without any maximum. Any deferred vacation time
remaining at retirement or termination is paid out at that time. The amount recorded for these benefits
is based on an actuarial evaluation done by an independent firm using a projected benefit actuarial
valuation method prorated on services. The last actuarial valuation was calculated at August 31, 2014
and has been extrapolated to December 31, 2015. The change in the liability in the financial
statements in respect of obligations under the plan amounts to $8,300. ($50,400 - 2014).

The accrued post-employment benefits are as follows:

2015 2014
Balance, beginning of year $ 276,300 $ 225,900
Current service costs 30,400 29,200
Benefits paid (32,700) (13,700)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (6,000) 34,900
Balance, end of year $ 268,000 $ 276,300

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Town’s post-employment benefits are
as follows:

2015 2014
Discount Rate 3.10% 3.10%
Expected Inflation Rate and Wage & Salary Increases 2.50% 2.50%

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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7.

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Deferred Revenue

Licence fees & charges

Rental payments

Prepaid property tax
Subdivision tree prepayment
Recreation prepayment

Utilities
Other

Refundable Deposits and Other

Developer performance deposits
Damage deposits

Other

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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589 37,957
243,115 163,609
45,604 35,105
32,399 26,928
26,249 26,102
14,759 15,396
368,849 311,057

2015 2014
212,120 159,780
179,400 173,550
200 200
391,720 333,530




TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Restricted Reserves and Development Cost Charges Reserve

Restricted reserves include Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) which are charged to developers and
utilized for infrastructure development. There are two reserves, LRC Capital and B&G Capital for the
replacement of specific building components located at 630 2" Avenue and 220 High Street.

Balance Balance

Description Dec. 31, 2014 Interest Contributions Expenditures Dec. 31, 2015
DCC - Water $ 258,136 $ 3,134 $ 141,386 $ - $ 402,656
DCC - Parks 270,463 2,682 45,360 - 318,504
DCC - Roads 431,985 3,923 96,180 (108,075) 424,013
DCC - Sewer 176,721 1,826 95,377 - 273,925
DCC - Storm 339,867 3,287 7,620 - 350,774
1,477,171 14,853 385,924 (108,075) 1,769,872
Parking 72,304 694 - - 72,998
Green Streets 1,427 14 - - 1,441
Amphitheatre 14,725 146 1,200 - 16,071
LRC - Capital 369,197 283 2,480 - 371,960
B&G - Capital 22,497 240 5,064 - 27,801
480,150 1,377 8,744 - 490,270
TOTAL $ 1,957,321 $ 16,229 $ 394,667 $ (108,075) $ 2,260,142

Financial Instruments

The Town as part of its operations carries a number of financial instruments. It is management’s
opinion the Town is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risk arising from these
financial instruments, except as otherwise disclosed. The Town is exposed to currency risk on its US
dollar bank account, as described in Note 3. Unless otherwise noted, the fair value of these financial
instruments approximates their carrying values.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Federal Gas Tax Reserve

Gas Tax funding is provided by the Government of Canada. The use of the funding is established by a
funding agreement between the Town and the Union of British Columbia Municipalities. Gas Tax
funding may be used towards designated public transit, community energy, water, wastewater, solid
waste and capacity building projects, as specified in the funding agreements. The funds are recorded
on the financial statements as a restricted reserve.

2015 2014
Opening balance of unspent funds $ 976,699 $ 854,988
Add: Amounts received during the year 374,048 374,048
Interest earned 9,265 9,347
Less: Gas tax funds utilized (299,363) (261,684)
Closing balance of unspent funds $ 1,060,650 $ 976,699

Obligations under Capital Lease

There are six leases payable to the Municipal Finance Authority. The future minimum lease
payments, including PST, under the capital lease obligation are as follows:

2016 $ 61,317
2017 48,872
2018 332,139
2019 3,379
2020 -
Thereafter -

Debt interest, less actuarial adjustments in the consolidated statement of financial activities, is
calculated as $8,673 ($10,812 - 2014).

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Obligations under Capital Lease (continued)

The Town has entered into capital leases for the following purchases:

1)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on August 2011 for the purchase of a Photocopier. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $329 including interest at 1.70% per
annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in obligation
under capital leases, is $2,416. Lease to expire July 2016. ($6,559 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on April 2012 for the purchase of a 4X4 fire truck. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $1,381 including interest at 1.70%
per annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in
obligation under capital leases, is $24,752. Lease to expire May 2017. ($41,870 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on June 2012 for the purchase of a photocopier. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $111 including interest at 1.70% per
annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in obligation
under capital leases, is $2,212. Lease to expire July 2017. ($3,587 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on March 28, 2013 for the purchase of a fire truck. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $2,718 including interest at 1.70%
per annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in
obligation under capital leases, is $378,241. Lease to expire March 2018. ($406,075 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on February 2, 2014 for the purchase of a photocopier. The remaining
obligation will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $147 including interest at
1.70% per annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in
obligation under capital leases, is $5,781. Lease to expire February 2019. ($7,546 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on April 25, 2014 for the purchase of fithess equipment. The remaining
obligation will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $782 including interest at
1.70% per annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in
obligation under capital leases, is $32,305. Lease to expire April 2019. ($41,678 - 2014)

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Equipment Financing

A new five year equipment financing agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British
Columbia commenced on September 28, 2015 for the financing of a fire truck. The remaining
obligation will be repaid with monthly payments in the amount of $776 including interest at 1.24%
per annum. The balance of the loan at December 31, 2015 is $42,952. Loan to expire September
30, 2020.

The future minimum principal payments are:

2016 $ 8,769
2017 8,889
2018 9,015
2019 9,143
2020 7,136
Thereafter -

Short-Term Debt

The Town executed short term borrowing of $4,000,000 to construct the upgrade of the Waste
Water Treatment Plant. An additional $3,000,000 was executed in 2016.

The Town also executed short term borrowing of $920,000 to purchase the properties at 12, 20, and
26 Buller Street and 721 First Avenue.

Principal Payments payable over the next five years:

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Waste Water Treatment Plant $4,000,000

Buller Street Properties - - - - $ 920,000

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

30



15.

16.

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Debenture Debt

The total long term debt issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2015 was $2,976,232
($3,231,518 as at December 31, 2014). There is an additional $10 million dollars authorized to fund
the upgrade of the Waste Water Treatment Plant.

The following principal amounts are payable over the next five years.

Principal repayments

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
General $ 66,033 $ 66,033 $ 66,033 $ 66,033 $ 66,033 $ 726,362
Water 24,012 24,012 24,012 24,012 24,012 408,204

Sewer

$ 90,045 §$ 90,045 § 90,045 §$ 90,045 § 90,045 $ 1,134,566

Actuarial sinking fund earnings

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
General $ 27,953 $ 31,712 $ 35622 $ 39,688 $ 43917 $ 815,770
Water 2,998 4,078 5,202 6,371 7,586 370,544

Sewer

$ 30,951 § 35,790 § 40,824 § 46,059 $ 51,503 $ 1,186,314

$120,996 $125,835 $130,869 $136,104 $141,548  $2,320,880

Debt interest, less actuarial adjustments in the consolidated statement of financial activities, is
determined as follows:

Actuarial
Interest Adjustment 2015 Net 2014 Net
General - Interest $ 219463 $ 83,177 $ 136,286 $ 145,380
Water - Interest 34,000 1,959 32,041 33,040
Sewer - Interest 725 3,826 (3,101) (1,263)

$ 254188 § 88,962 $ 165226 $ 177,156

Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Contingent Liabilities

i) The Town, as a member of the Cowichan Valley Regional District, is jointly and severally liable
for operational deficits or long term debt related to functions in which it participates.

i) The loan agreements with the Municipal Finance Authority provide that if the Authority does not
have sufficient funds to meet payments on its obligations it shall make payments from the Debt
Reserve Fund which in turn is established by a similar Debt Reserve Fund in the Town and all
other borrowing participants. If the Debt Reserve Fund is deficient the Authority's obligations
become a liability of the regional district and may become a liability of the participating
municipalities.

iii) Various claims have been made against the Town as at December 31, 2015for incidents which

arose in the ordinary course of operations. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

outcomes of the lawsuits, now pending, are not determinable. As the outcomes are not
determinable at this time, no amount has been accrued in the financial statements. Should any
loss result from the resolution of these claims, such loss will be charged to operations in the year
of resolution.

Pension Liability

The employer and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed
pension plan). The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible
for administering the plan, including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The
Plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a
formula. As at December 31, 2014, the Plan has about 185,000 active members and
approximately 80,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 37,000
contributors from local governments.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan
and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and
member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based
on the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and
employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This
rate is then adjusted to the extent there is amortization of any funding deficit.

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as of December 31, 2012, indicated a
$1.37 billion funding deficit for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2015, with results available in 2016.

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate,
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to
individual employers participating in the plan.

The Town of Ladysmith paid $430,067 (2014 - $408,683) for employer contributions to the Plan
in fiscal 2015.

Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement

The Town is a subscribed member of the Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia
(The "Exchange") as provided by Section 3.02 of the Insurance Act of the Province of British
Columbia. The main purpose of the Exchange is to pool the risks of liability so as to lessen the
impact upon any subscriber. Under the Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement the Town is
assessed a premium and specific deductible for its claims based on population. The obligation
of the Town with respect to the Exchange and/or contracts and obligations entered into by the
Exchange on behalf of its subscribers in connection with the Exchange are in every case
several, and not joint and several. The Town irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes and
agrees to indemnify and save harmless the other subscribers against liability losses and costs
which the other subscriber may suffer.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

17. Significant Taxpayers

The Town is reliant upon 10 taxpayers for approximately 20.72% (21.19% - 2014) of the total
property tax revenue which includes Western Forest Products at approximately 12.6% (13.1% -
2014) of the total property tax revenue.

18. Funds Held in Trust

These funds account for assets which must be administered as directed by agreement or statute for
certain beneficiaries; in particular, these funds are for the Cemetery Trust Fund. In accordance with
PSAB recommendations on financial statement presentation, trust funds are not included in the
Town's Financial Statements. A summary of trust fund activities by the Town is as follows:

2015 2014

Assets

Cash and short term investment $ 147,252 $ 143,932
Equity

Opening balance $ 143,932 $ 141,707
Interest 1,474 1,583
Transfer interest to fund cemetery costs (1,474) (1,583)
Contributions 3,320 2,225
Balance, end of year $ 147,252 $ 143,932

19. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Accumulated Surplus

The Town segregates its accumulated surplus in the following categories:

2015 2014
(Restated)
Unappropriated equity $ 3,733,297 $ 3,301,039
Appropriated equity (Schedule VI) 5,612,326 7,307,629
9,345,623 10,608,668
Capital Funds
General capital fund 127,404 113,288
Sewer capital fund 17,419 834
Water capital fund 612,520 595,935
757,344 710,057
Reserve Funds
Reserve funds (Schedule VI) 286,847 235,633
Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 80,790,552 76,373,114
Total Accumulated Surplus $ 91,180,366 $ 87,927,472

Annual Budget

Fiscal plan amounts represent the Financial Plan Bylaw adopted by Council on May 11, 2015.

The Financial Plan anticipated the use of surpluses accumulated in previous years to balance
against current year expenses in excess of current year revenues. In addition, the Financial Plan

anticipated capital expenses rather than amortization expense.

The following shows how these amounts were combined:

Financial Plan Balance for the year $ -
Add back:
Amortization (2,485,372)
Proceeds from new debt (9,800,000)
Transfers to/from own funds (1,140,829)
Less:
Principal payments on debt 477,120
Capital expenditures per budget 17,448,403
Capital Expenditures expensed according to Tangible Capital Asset Policy (790,920)
Adjusted Annual Surplus $ 3,708,402

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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22,

23.

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

DL 2016 Holdings Corporation (“DL 2016”)

The Town of Ladysmith has an investment in DL 2016 Holdings Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary company of the Town.

The Town of Ladysmith leases portions of its waterfront from the Province of British Columbia parts
of which are subleased to DL 2016 for use as a marina.

DL 2016 has entered into operation and maintenance agreement and a license agreement with the
Ladysmith Maritime Society (LMS) for the operation and management of the lease area.

Pursuant to these agreements DL 2016 could provide security for debt financing in order for LMS to
implement capital improvements to the lease area.

Segmented Information

The Town is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of services to
its citizens such as roads, water, sewer and drainage infrastructure, fire protection, police protection
(RCMP), cemetery, recreation centre, garbage collection and parkland. Distinguishable functional
segments have been separately disclosed in the segmented information. The nature of the
segments and the activities they encompass are as follows:

General Government Services

The City Manager is the liaison between Council and the Town departments and staff. The
Corporate Services Department supports the legislated activities of Council, and provides
information to citizens with respect to Council/Committee processes, reporting procedures and
decisions, and Town activities. Also included in General Government Services is the Finance
Department, Information Technology and Human Resources.

Protective Services

Protection is comprised of fire protection, policing, bylaw enforcement and building inspection.

e Bylaw enforcement administers, monitors, and seeks compliance with the bylaws enacted
by the Mayor and Council to regulate the conduct of affairs in the Town of Ladysmith.

e Fire protection is provided by the fire department, whose volunteer members receive
compensation for each callout in which they take part.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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23.

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Segmented Information (Continued)

Policing is provided under contract with the RCMP operating from a detachment building
located in and owned by the Town of Ladysmith.

The Town of Ladysmith’s Development Services and Public Works Departments work
together to regulate all construction within the Town. This is achieved through the use of the
Town of Ladysmith’s Building and Plumbing Bylaw, the British Columbia Building Code, the
British Columbia Fire Code and other related bylaws and enactments with the Town of
Ladysmith.

Transportation, Garbage and Cemetery

The Transportation (Public Works) Department is responsible for the infrastructure of the Town:

Ensuring clean and safe water to the Town, supplied through underground pipes and
reservoirs,

Maintaining a separate system of underground pipes to collect sewer or waste water for
proper treatment prior to discharging it,

Providing and maintaining the Town’s roads, sidewalks, street lights, signage and line
markings, storm drainage and hydrants,

Providing other key services including street cleaning and the operation of a local bus
service.

Garbage Services (Public Works) is responsible for the garbage collection and compost and
recycling programs operating in the Town of Ladysmith. Garbage and recycling collection is
performed by a contractor.

Cemetery (Public Works) Department provides cemetery services including the maintenance of the
cemetery grounds.

Development

The Development Services Department provides short-term and long-term land use planning
services.

Long-term Planning includes work with the community on reviewing the Town’s Official
Community Plan, developing new Neighbourhood Plans, the Trail Plan and the review of
relevant bylaws.

Short term Planning includes the processing of development applications.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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25.

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Segmented Information (Continued)

Recreation and Culture

The Parks, Recreation and Culture Department contribute to the quality of life and personal wellness
of the community through the provision of a variety of special events, programs, services and
facilities. The Frank Jameson Community Centre is the location where the majority of the programs
are offered.

Parks

Parks includes and provides maintenance of beach area, trails, golf course, spray-park, ball parks,
and any other civic grounds.

Water

Water includes all of the operating activities related to the treatment and distribution of water
throughout the Town.

Sewer

Sewer includes all of the operating activities related to the collection and treatment of waste water
(sewage) throughout the Town.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to year end, the Town borrowed an additional $3,000,000 for a total of $7,000,000 of
the approved $10,000,000 loan through the Municipal Finance Authority for the construction of the
third phase of the wastewater treatment plant.

Changes in Accounting Policies
PS 3260 Liabilities for Contaminated Sites

Effective January 1, 2015, the Town of Ladysmith adopted the recommendations in PS 3260
Liabilities for Contaminated Sites, as set out in the Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Pursuant to the recommendations, the change was applied prospectively, and prior periods have not
been restated.

Previously, no accounting policy existed to account for a liability for contaminated sites. Under the
new recommendations, the Town of Ladysmith is required to recognize a liability for contaminated
sites when economic benefits will be given up, as described in Note 2 (k), Significant Accounting
Policies.

There was no effect on the Town’s financial statements from adopting the above-noted change in
accounting policy.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Spartan Fire Truck
City Hall Copier

Fire Bush Truck
Spartan Fire Truck
P.W. Copier

Ricoh Copier - FJCC

Fitness Equip - FJCC

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

SCHEDULE OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE |
Original Balance Principal Net Balance Interest
Term Amount Dec 31,2014 Payments Interest” Dec 31,2015 Rate
2010-15 $ 312258 $ 51,091 $ 51,091 $ 618 $ - 1.70%
2011-16 19,780 6,559 4,143 79 $ 2,416 1.70%
2012-17 83,652 41,870 17,118 575 § 24,752 1.70%
2013-18 452,066 406,075 27,834 6,608 $ 378,241 1.70%
2012-17 6,748 3,587 1,375 50 $ 2,212 1.70%
2014-19 8,967 7,546 1,765 13 § 5,781 1.70%
2014-19 47,765 41,678 9,373 630 $ 32,305 1.70%
$ 931236 $ 558406 $ 112698 $ 8673 § 445,707

) Interest, net of actuarial adjustments
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General Capital Fund

2015 Buller Street Properties

Sewer Capital Fund

2015 Waste Water Treatment Plant

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

SCHEDULE OF SHORT TERM DEBT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE Il

Original Balance Principal Net Balance Interest
Term Amount Dec 31,2014 Payments Interest” Dec 31,2015 Rate
5 years $ 920,000 $ - $ - $ 5318 § 920,000 1.30%
5 years 4,000,000 - - 22,564 4,000,000 1.30%
$ 4,920,000 $ - 9 - $ 27,881 $ 4,920,000

" Interest, net of actuarial adjustments
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General Capital Fund

2000 First Avenue

2006 RCMP Building

Water Capital Fund

2012 Water Improvements

Sewer Capital Fund

2000 Sewer Improvements

Issue

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

SCHEDULE OF DEBENTURE DEBT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE llI

Original Balance Principal Net Balance Interest
# Term Amount Dec 31,2014 Payments Interest M pec 31, 2015 Rate
73 2000-15 $ 1,438,000 $ 130,462 $ 130,462 $ 32474 $ - 6.35%
97 2006-31 2,750,000 2,141,558 90,371 103,812 2,051,187 4.66%
118 2012-37 1,000,000 951,016 25,971 32,041 925,044 3.40%
72 2000-15 93,500 8,483 8,483 (3,101) - 6.45%
$ 5281500 $ 3,231,518 $ 255287 $ 165226 $ 2,976,232

" Interest, net of actuarial adjustments
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
SCHEDULE OF TAX REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE IV
Actuals Budget Actuals
2015 2015 2014
General Taxes
General municipal purposes $ 7,456,243 $ 7,458,863 $ 7,022,129
Grants in lieu and 1% ultility tax 165,762 164,115 165,983
Water and sewer parcel tax 1,542,125 1,539,493 1,431,141

$ 9,164,130 $ 9,162,471 $ 8,619,254

Collections for other governments:

School district $ 2,993,017 $ 2,990,048 $ 3,028,714
Regional hospital district 694,246 693,237 642,775
Regional district 1,139,643 1,138,082 1,018,087
BCAA and MFA 82,205 82,122 85,103
Library 340,973 341,052 328,044

$ 5,250,083 $ 5,244,541 $ 5102,722

Less:
Transmission of taxes levied for other agencies:
School district $ 2,993,017 $ 2,990,048 $ 3,028,714
Regional hospital district 694,246 693,237 642,775
Regional district 1,139,643 1,138,082 1,018,087
BCAA and MFA 82,205 82,122 85,103
Library 340,973 341,052 328,044
$ 5,250,083 $ 5,244,541 $ 5,102,722
Net Taxation $ 9,164,130 $ 9,162,471 $ 8,619,254
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Licences and fines

Garbage services

General government services
Cemetery services
Recreation services

Permits and Fees

Protective Services

Water Utility Fees

Sewer Utility Fees

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
SCHEDULE OF FEES & CHARGES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE V
Actuals Budget Actuals
2015 2015 2014
$ 85,957 $ 79,650 $ 81,540
638,647 621,750 595,863
110,514 77,773 124,753
33,095 30,072 27,630
674,765 632,242 599,304
116,344 78,900 72,197
235,418 238,067 234,511
713,268 765,290 713,777
791,347 767,278 741,877
$ 3,399,355 $ 3,291,022 $ 3,191,452
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONTINUITY SCHEDULE OF RESERVES & APPROPRIATED EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

RESERVES
Tax Sale
Perpetual Safety Fund
Sale Real Property
Municipal Office Building
Amenity Funds

TOTAL RESERVES

APPROPRIATED EQUITY - OPERATIONS
General Operating Fund

Future Projects

Equipment

Land & Building

Tax Contingency

Snow & Ice Removal

Infrastructure Deficit

Multi-Materials BC Rebate

Water Operating Fund
Capital Expenditures
MFA Surplus Refunds

Total Water Operating Fund

Sewer Operating Fund
Capital Expenditures
MFA Surplus Refunds

Total Sewer Operating Fund

TOTAL APPROPRIATED EQUITY

SCHEDULE VI

(Unaudited)

Restated

Balance Interest Balance
Dec. 31, 2014 Allocated Contributions Funding Dec. 31, 2015
$ 25430 $ 264 $ - $ - $ 25,694
12,654 132 - - 12,786
115,000 - 60,000 - 175,000
82,549 818 - 10,000 73,367
$ 235,633 $ 1,214 $ 60,000 $ 10,000 $ 286,847
1,135,134 - 691,679 270,964 1,555,849
788,967 - 328,070 153,683 963,354
71,235 - 157,360 14,200 214,395
107,986 - - 100,000 7,986
30,000 - - - 30,000
140,140 - 178,039 - 318,179
60,800 - 89,040 3,127 146,713
2,334,262 - 1,444,188 541,974 3,236,476
778,003 - 151,450 125,545 803,908
524,076 - - - 524,076
1,302,079 - 151,450 125,545 1,327,984
3,064,935 - 784,996 3,414,009 435,922
606,353 - 5,591 - 611,944
3,671,288 - 790,587 3,414,009 1,047,866
$ 7,307,629 $ - $ 2386225 $ 4081528 $ 5,612,326
7,543,262 $ 1214 $§ 2446225 $ 4,091,528 $ 5,899,173

TOTAL RESERVES AND APPROPRIATED EQUITY §
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General operating fund
Water operating fund
Sewer operating fund
Reserve fund

General capital fund
Water capital fund
Sewer capital fund

Total

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED RESERVES, RESERVES & EQUITY BY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE VI

(Unaudited)

Restricted Allocated Appropriated Unappropriated Capital Funds

Reserves Reserves Equity Equity Equity Total
$ - $ - $ 3236476 $ 875,140 $ - $ 4111616
- - 1,327,984 511,306 - 1,839,290
- - 1,047,866 2,346,851 - 3,394,717
490,270 286,847 - - - 777,118
- - - - 127,404 127,404
- - - - 612,520 612,520
- - - - 17,419 17,419
$ 490,270 286,847 $ 5612326 $ 3,733,297 § 757,344 $ 10,880,085
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
SCHEDULE OF GRANT REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE ViiI
Actuals Budget Actuals
2015 2015 2014
Operating Grants
Traffic Fines Revenue $ 54572 % 43,000 $ 31,650
Small Communities 472,265 450,000 295,191
CVRD Recreation 126,890 125,545 125,545
Other 31,728 11,865 16,138
685,455 630,410 468,524
Capital Grants

Composting Facility $ - $ 500,000 $ -

Energy and Facility Assessment - 10,000 -
Frank Jameson Energy Upgrades - - 353,021

ICBC Sign Incentive 14,830 - -

Signage Initiative - 8,400 -
Stz'uminus First Nation Cooperation Protocol 3,849 9,000 19,037

Transfer Beach Parking Lot Railing 6,000 6,000 -

Upper Transfer Beach Improvements - 6,000 -
Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade 1,824,661 3,110,709 2,640,221

Waterfront Area Plan - 50,000 -
Zoning Bylaw - - 23,660
1,849,340 3,700,109 3,035,939
$ 2,534,795 $ 4,330,519 $ 3,504,463
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REVENUE

Tax

Fees & Charges

Investment income & MFA Refunds
Penalty & Interest on tax

Grants

Donations & contributed property
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange
Gain (loss) on disposal
Development fees

Local area improvements

Gas tax fund utilized

Total revenue

EXPENSES
Contracted Services
Grants In Aid
Insurance

Interest

Materials & Supplies
Utilities & Telephone
Wages & Benefits
Other

Amortization

Total expenses

Surplus (Deficit)

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE IX
Transportation,
General Protective Garbage & Cemetery Development
Government Services Services Services

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
$ 7,622,005 $ 7,188,113 - - - - - -
43,014 61,945 400,413 323,687 635,876 632,516 102,522 62,561
176,832 127,922 - - - - - -
123,546 123,987 - - - - - -
477,748 312,515 54,572 31,650 23,194 8,836 8,436 24,091
- - - - 48,790 107,082 - 14,327
131,994 95,762 - - - - - -
153,676 (5,000) - - (20,861) (7,281) - -
- - - - 108,075 108,075 - 3,550
- - - - 132,702 63,000 - -
8,728,816 7,905,242 454,985 355,337 927,776 912,228 110,958 104,529
412,266 268,542 1,034,050 982,236 633,798 580,734 123,103 182,456
100,250 98,156 11,000 11,000 - - - -
57,060 63,494 24,803 25,650 3,304 7,756 1,360 -
5,397 164 111,766 117,144 32,524 38,172 - -
36,567 34,475 80,549 63,294 141,790 119,298 6,103 7,049
18,203 18,662 47,739 46,967 136,773 144,910 6,639 6,160
1,537,277 1,432,762 383,637 345,527 701,923 810,731 366,143 359,036
(103,477) 134,334 43,996 44,146 (16,192) 108,629 13,038 6,198
206,529 190,066 164,024 169,332 844,004 841,019 - -
2,270,072 2,240,654 1,901,564 1,805,295 2,477,923 2,651,249 516,386 560,899
$ 6,458,744 $ 5,664,588 $ (1,446,579) $§ (1,449,958) $ (1,550,147) $ (1,739,021) § (405,428) $ (456,370)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE IX -CONTINUED

Recreation & Culture Parks Operations Sewer Operations Water Operations Total Total
Services Services Services Services Actual Actual
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
- - - - $ 964,365 $ 962,751 $ 577,760 $ 468,390 $ 9,164,130 $ 8,619,254
712,913 655,089 - - 791,347 741,877 713,268 713,777 3,399,353 3,191,452
- - - - 2,920 - - 2,772 179,752 130,693
- - - - - - - - 123,546 123,987
141,184 487,151 5,000 - 1,824,661 2,640,221 - - 2,534,795 3,504,463
73,711 10,500 110,963 8,000 - - 8,450 3,133 241,914 143,043
- - - - - - - - 131,994 95,762
- (23,549) - - 16,585 - 15,560 - 164,961 (35,830)
- - - - - - - - 108,075 111,625
- - - - - 8,922 - - - 8,922
10,777 192,674 155,885 6,011 - - - - 299,363 261,684
938,585 1,321,864 271,847 14,011 3,599,878 4,353,771 1,315,038 1,188,072 16,347,884 16,155,054
146,226 123,047 41,747 25,128 106,434 93,091 335,078 193,539 2,832,702 2,448,773
- - - - - - - - 111,250 109,156
35,037 43,087 5,478 - 12,329 13,899 3,861 4,353 143,232 158,239
743 712 - - 19,462 (1,263) 32,041 33,040 201,933 187,968
131,336 105,344 100,537 85,655 109,228 97,799 86,797 36,198 692,907 549,112
138,627 138,689 5,014 11,569 60,850 59,659 11,628 8,643 425,473 435,259
1,626,835 1,638,725 384,944 373,228 358,628 318,913 394,910 348,105 5,754,297 5,627,026
81,302 74,975 99,159 89,106 163,158 50,624 140,056 27,447 421,040 535,459
227,632 218,246 257,448 251,408 444,265 441,733 368,255 324,244 2,512,157 2,436,048
2,387,738 2,342,825 894,327 836,094 1,274,354 1,074,455 1,372,626 975,569 13,094,990 12,487,040
$ (1,449,153) $ (1,020,961) (622,479) $ (822,083) $ 2,325,524 § 3,279,316 $ (57,588) $ 212,503 $ 3,252,894 $ 3,668,014
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE X

Land Land Improvements Buildings Vehicle Furniture & Equipment  Transportation
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
COST
Opening Balance $ 8,566,085 $ 8,566,085 $ 7,960,932 $ 7,776,566  $19,684,792 $17,719,021 § 5705958 $ 5542685 $ 25,876,555
Add: Additions 716,098 - 172,298 184,366 457,394 1,988,628 599,622 230,549 315,628
Less: Disposals - - 14,582 - - 22,857 210,986 67,276 20,613
Less: Write-downs - - - - - - - - -
Closing Balance 9,282,183 8,566,085 8,118,648 7,960,932 20,142,186 19,684,792 6,094,594 5,705,958 26,171,570
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Opening Balance - - 2,528,342 2,298,880 4,458,227 3,970,876 3,343,537 3,129,672 13,543,624
Add: Amortization - - 229,546 229,462 535,958 492,230 277,599 271,507 633,515
Less: Write-downs - - - - - - - - -
Less: Disposals - - 14,582 - - 4,879 177,309 57,642 20,461
Closing Balance - - 2,743,306 2,528,342 4,994,185 4,458,227 3,443,827 3,343,537 14,156,678
Net Book Value $ 9,282,183 § 8,566,085 $ 5,375,342 $ 5,432,590 $15,148,001 $15,226,565 $ 2,650,767 $ 2,362,421 $ 12,014,892

Included in the tangible capital assets are leased and financed assets with a total cost of $931,236 - (2014 - $931,236) and accumulated amortization of

$185,490 - (2014 - $144,607)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE X - CONTINUED

Linear Infrastructure

Transportation Sanitary Sewer Storm Water Assets Under Construction Total

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
$ 25543,068 $ 19,996,796 $ 19,996,796 $ 8,123,714 $ 7,938,726  $16,374,424 $15908,724 $ 3,755,487 $ 2,395,942  $116,044,743 $111,387,613
333,487 56,962 - 70,422 201,939 80,015 465,700 9,123,785 2,734,450 11,592,224 6,139,119
- - - 1,020 16,951 3,989 - 33,024 1,374,905 284,214 1,481,989
25,876,555 20,053,758 19,996,796 8,193,116 8,123,714 16,450,450 16,374,424 12,846,248 3,755,487 127,352,752 116,044,743
12,935,018 5,719,947 5,286,007 1,974,264 1,869,229 4,313,218 4,020,252 - - 35,881,159 33,509,934
608,606 427,006 433,940 109,782 107,634 298,751 292,966 - - 2,512,157 2,436,345
- - - 689 2,599 2,964 - - - 216,005 65,120
13,543,624 6,146,953 5,719,947 2,083,357 1,974,264 4,609,005 4,313,218 - - 38,177,311 35,881,159
$ 12,332,931 $ 13,906,805 $ 14,276,849 $ 6,109,759 § 6,149,450  $11,841,445 $12,061,206 § 12,846,248 § 3,755,487 $ 89,175441 $ 80,163,584
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WHEREAS:

WHEREAS':

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

THEREFORE,

April 13, 2016

LADYSMITH

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

PROCLAMATION

NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK

Public work services provided in our community are an integral part
of our citizens’ everyday lives; and

The support of an understanding and informed citizenry is vital to the
efficient operation of public works systems and programs, such as
water, sewers, streets and highways, public buildings, and solid
waste collection; and

The health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends on
these facilities and services; and

The quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well as their
planning, design, and construction, is vitally dependent upon the
efforts and skill of public works officials; and

The efficiency of the qualified and dedicated personnel who staff
public works departments is materially influenced by the people’s
attitude and understanding of the importance of the work they
perform.

1, Aaron Stone, Mayor of the Town of Ladysmith, do hereby proclaim
the week of May 15" — 21, 2016 as “National Public Works Week”
in the town of Ladysmith, British Columbia.

v
Mayor A. Stone

50




WHEREAS:

April 4, 2016

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

PROCLAMATION

NATIONAL MISSING CHILDREN’S MONTH
AND MISSING CHILDREN’S DAY

Child Find British Columbia, a provincial member of Child
Find Canada, is a non-profit, registered charitable
organization, incorporated in 1984,

AND WHEREAS: The Mandate of Child Find British Columbia is to educate

children and adults about abduction prevention, to promote
awareness of the problem of missing children, and to assist in
the location of missing children;

AND WHEREAS: Child Find has recognized Green as the colour of Hope,

which symbolizes a light in the darkness for all missing
children;

AND WHEREAS: Child Find’s annual Green Ribbon of Hope Campaign will be

held in the month of May, and May 25" is National Missing
Children’s Day, ‘

THEREFORE, 1, Aaron Stone, Mayor of the Town of Ladysmith, do hereby

proclaim Mczy as Child Find’s Green Ribbon of Hope month
and May 25" as National Missing Children’s day. I urge our
citizens to wear a green ribbon as a symbol of Hope for the
recovery of all missing children; and to remain vigilant in our
common desire to protect and nurture the youth of our
Province. S Y

Mayor A. Stone
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#4-3179 BARONS ROAD, NANAIMO, B.C. VOT 5W5

PHONE: (250) 756-9553 FAX: (250) 756-9503

NEWCASTLE
ENGINEERING LTD.

April 11, 2016 0845-002

Town of Ladysmith

Attn: John Mason, FEC, P.Eng
Director of Infrastructure Services
330 - 6th Ave.

Ladysmith, B.C. V9G 1A2

Dear John:

Re: Holiand Creek Development Rezoning
Water Supply to Multi-Family Parcel Adjacent to Arbutus Hump

We provide the following information and comments regarding the supply of water to the
area in the southwest corner of the subject Holland Creek Development property that is
proposed for a muitifamily zone.

The pressure zone boundary to provide a residual water pressure of 40 psi (276 KPa),
the normal recommended minimum for domestic use, is at an elevation of 130m.

The requirement for fire protection is a 20 psi (138 KPa) residual in the system, which
due to the close proximity to the existing arbutus reservoir, my enable adequate fire
protection from the existing system at a marginally higher elevation than 130m.

The area of the proposed multifamily zoning designation in the vicinity of Arbutus Hump
is 3.84 Ha. Of this, approximately 1.41 Ha is below the 130m contour and therefore
could be developed without any provision of additional systems to provide adequate fire
or domestic water infrastructure features.

The subject proposed multifamily parcel is located at the southwestern extremity of the
property, furthest away from existing sanitary and road systems that will require
extension to provide these services for development of the site. It is anticipated that this
multifamily site will not be serviced for development for 10 to 15 years.

There are potential options to provide the area of the multifamily above the 130m
contour with adequate water for fire protection and we have outline some of them below:

1. A new higher pressure zone, including a reservoir, may be created to enable
development of other areas of Ladysmith that could be connected to the subject
property (i.e. the Couverdon Lands).

2. As discussed during the Holland Creek Area — Transportation and Servicing
Review meetings, other adjacent lands have significant potential development
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Town of Ladysmith
STAFF REPORT

To: Ruth Malli, City Manager
From: Sandy Bowden, Director of Corporate Services
Date: April 6, 2016

Lapvsarn (1€ No:

Re: OFFICERS AND DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY BYLAW 2016, NO. 1905

RECOMMENDATION:

That Council direct staff to process the “Town of Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of
Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905” as presented.

PURPOSE:
The purpose of this staff report is to provide an overview of the draft “Town of Ladysmith
Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw No. 1905, 2016" and to provide Council with an

opportunity to comment on the bylaw.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND:

Sec. 146 of the Community Charter states that “A council

(a) must, by bylaw, establish officer positions in relation to the powers, duties and
functions under sections 148 [corporate officer] and 149 [financial officer],

(b) may, by bylaw, establish other officer positions, and

(c) may assign powers, duties and functions to its officer positions.”

Staff has prepared the attached draft “Town of Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of
Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905" for Council's consideration. This bylaw replaces
“Delegation Bylaw 2007, No. 1614” and all amendments thereto.

In summary, this bylaw identifies the statutory positions of Corporate Officer and Financial
Officer as officers of the Town. It also specifies that the Chief Administrative Officer is an
officer of the Town. Further, it articulates the specific authorities delegated to officers as
well as department directors in accordance with the current Delegation Bylaw No. 1614 and
provincial legislation. The following authorities have been added to the authorities already
delegated to specific positions in the current Delegation Bylaw No. 1614

Chief Administrative Officer

Section 11 outlines the duties, powers and functions of the Chief Administrative Officer as
follows:
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Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw 2016, 1905 Page 2

a) fulfilling the powers, duties and functions applicable to the Chief Administrative Officer
described in Section 147 of the Community Charter;

b) selecting and appointing the Statutory Officers and other Department Directors of the
Town;

c) determining the compensation of non-union employees in accordance with the
corporate policies and budgets established by Council;

d) appointing, promoting, disciplining, and suspending any employee of the Town, and
terminating any employee of the Town other than Statutory Officers, subject to any
contract of employment or collective agreement in force;

e) subject to Council approval, negotiating all collective agreements;

f) implementing all Council approved policies and directives;

g) preparing and submitting such reports and recommendations as may be required by
Council;

h) retaining legal counsel on behalf of the Town;

i) assigning additional responsibilities to a Statutory Officer, including acting on behalf of
another officer Statutory Officer in his or her absence; and

j)  designating an acting Chief Administrative Officer to act in his or her absence.

Director of Corporate Services

Included in the proposed bylaw are a number of optional powers under Section 13 (in
particular [d] through [i]) in relation to land that Council may wish to delegate to the Director
of Corporate Services in the interest of streamlining its processes. These include the power
to accept, amend, execute and discharge restrictive covenants under Section 56 of the
Community Charter or Section 219 of the Land Title Act, the power to acquire statutory
rights of way or easements and amend or discharge statutory rights of way or easements.

Director of Financial Services

Section 15 includes the authority to provide discounts or reimburse fees and charges up to
a maximum of $1,000 to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Community Charter.
In particular, under Section 194, Council's power to discount or refund fees must be
established by bylaw. Accordingly, Section 15 authorizes the Director of Financial Services to
administer the system of discounts and refunds of fees established by Council bylaw.

Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture

Section 17 incorporates the authority to administer any system of discount, interest, penalty,
payment, and refund of fees associated with any parks or recreation facility or program,
pursuant to the “Town of Ladysmith Community Centre and Facilities Fees and Charges
Bylaw 2015, No. 1884” and in accordance with applicable policies established from time to
time by Council.
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Director of Infrastructure Services/Approving Officer

Section 18 clarifies that approval of the location, designation and control of on-street
parking and loading areas must be done in accordance with the Streets and Traffic Bylaw
No. 1309.

Section 20 delegates the authority to approve the subdivision of land into parcels, including
panhandle parcels, that do not have a minimum highway frontage greater than a) 10% of
the perimeter of the parcel that fronts the highway; and b) the minimum highway frontage
required by the Town of Ladysmith Subdivision and Development Servicing Bylaw 2013, No.
1834 to the Approving Officer.

Delegation of Purchasing Authority

Section 21 delegates the power, duty and function to authorize the execution of contracts
and purchases on behalf of the Town to the Department Director for which the goods and
services are to be provided as approved in the Financial Plan. Section 20 recognizes the
New West Trade Partnership Agreement, and any other enactments that impact
procurement powers. Schedule B of the bylaw incorporates the approvals required for the
various procurement levels as stipulated in the Town's Purchasing Policy.

SCOPE OF WORK:

Once Council’s direction is provided staff will proceed with processing the bylaw as
appropriate.

ALTERNATIVES:

Council could direct staff to amend the proposed bylaw or Council could direct staff to not
proceed with the bylaw. .

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:;
N/A

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS;

As noted in the introduction, the Community Charter requires a local government to
establish statutory officer positions by bylaw. This bylaw brings the Town into compliance
with this requirement. The draft bylaw has been reviewed by the Town's solicitor.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
N/A

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:

This initiative clarifies authorities delegated to various senior management positions and
officer positions and involves all departments.
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RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

No additional resources are required for this initiative.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:
N/A

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:

This initiative clarifies various roles and responsibilities of senior management positions and
associated delegated authorities and therefore supports all strategic priorities.

SUMMARY:
The Community Charter requires that Council establish statutory officer positions by bylaw.

Delegation Bylaw No. 1614 requires updating. Staff requests Council’s consideration of
“Town of Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905”.

| concur with the recommendation.

Aol

~ NRuth Malli, City Manager

ATTACHMENT:
Draft “Town of Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905”
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

BYLAW NQO. 1905

A bylaw to provide for the appointment of Officers for the Town of Ladysmith and to prescribe
the powers, duties and responsibilities of such officers including the delegation of authority.

WHEREAS Council must, by bylaw, establish officers’ positions having responsibility under the

Community Charter, SBC 2006 c¢. 26;

AND WHEREAS Council may, by bylaw, delegate certain powers, duties and functions to its

officers and employees;

NOW, THEREFORE, in open meeting assembled, the Council of the Town of Ladysmith enacts

as follows:

Citation

L. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of
Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905”.

Definitions

2. In this bylaw:

“Approving Officer”

“Bylaw”

“Department Director”

“Department Manager”

“Emergency”

“Employee”

“Financial Plan”

“Panhandle Parcel”

“Special Event”

“Special Occasion License”

“Statutory Officer”

“Town”

“Zoning Bylaw”

Has the same meaning as “Approving Officer” in the
Town of Ladysmith Subdivision and Development
Servicing Bylaw 2013, No. 1834;

Means this Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of
Authority Bylaw 2016, No. xxxx;

As defined in Schedule ‘A’, attached to and forming
part of this bylaw;

As defined in Schedule ‘A’, attached to and forming
part of this bylaw;

Means a situation which may endanger the health
and/or safety of any Town employee, member of the
public or Town asset, as declared by Council;

Means a person employed by the Town of Ladysmith
other than a Statutory Officer;

Has the same meaning as “financial plan” as defined in
the Community Charter;

Has the same meaning as “Panhandle Parcel” in the
Town of Ladysmith Subdivision and Development
Bylaw 2013, No. 1834;

Means any organized event or gathering taking place
on Town-owned property for a limited or fixed
duration;

Means a special occasion license issued pursuant to the
Liguor Control and Licensing Act, RSBC 1996, ¢. 267;

Means a person appointed under Section 146 of the
Community Charter,

Means the Town of Ladysmith;

Means the “Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014,
No. 1860”.
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Establishment of Statutory Officer Positions

3.

10.

The person holding the position of Chief Administrative Officer is established as a
Statutory Officer of the Town.

The person holding the position of Director of Corporate Services is established as a
Statutory Officer of the Town. ‘

The person holding the position of Director of Financial Services is established as a
Statutory Officer of the Town.

Nothing in this Bylaw shall prevent the appointment of the same person to two or more
offices or positions.

The selection and appointment of the Chief Administrative Officer shall be made by
Council.

The selection and appointment of all Department Directors is delegated to the Chief
Administrative Officer.

The selection and appointment of the acting Chief Administrative Officer for a
consecutive period of less than one month is delegated to the Chief Administrative
Officer.

The selection and appointment of the acting Chief Administrative Officer for a
consecutive period of greater than one month shall be made by Council.

Power and Duties of the Chief Administrative Officer

11.

The Chief Administrative Officer has the following duties, powers and functions:
a. fulfilling the powers, duties and functions applicable to the Chief Administrative
Officer described in Section 147 of the Community Charter;

b. selecting and appointing the Statutory Officers and other Department Directors of

the Town,;

¢. determining the compensation of non-union employees in accordance with the

corporate policies and budgets established by Council;

d. appointing, promoting, disciplining, and suspending any employee of the Town,
and terminating any employee of the Town other than Statutory Officers, subject
to any contract of employment or collective agreement in force;
subject to Council approval, negotiating all collective agreements;
implementing all Council approved policies and directives;
preparing and submitting such reports and recommendations as may be required
by Council;
retaining legal counsel on behalf of the Town;
assigning additional responsibilities to a Statutory Officer, including acting on
behalf of another Statutory Officer in his or her absence; and
designating an acting Chief Administrative Officer to act in his or her absence,
pursuant to section 9 hereof.

mE @
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Powers and Duties of the Director of Corporate Services

12.

13.

The Director of Corporate Services has the powers, duties and functions described in
Section 148 of the Community Charter and other provisions applicable to the Corporate
Officer in the Community Charter or any other enactments.

Council hereby delegates to the Director of Corporate Services the following powers,
duties and functions:
a. approving applications for temporary private uses of municipal streets, including,
but not limited to, parades, walk-a-thons, fundraisers and races;
b. entering into leases of two years or less and the ability to set rental rates and
conditions associated with these leases;
¢. approving the location and use of fireworks in accordance with Cowichan Valley
Regional District Bylaw No. 39 — Fireworks Sale and Discharge Regulation
Bylaw, 1970 and in consultation with the Fire Chief;
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d. the power to accept a restrictive covenant or amendment to a restrictive covenant
under section 56 of the Community Charter or section 219 of the Land Title Act;

e. the power to execute on behalf of the Town a discharge of a restrictive covenant
referred to in subsection (d) which is no longer required or is to be replaced;

f. the power to acquire a statutory right of way or easement or amendment to a
statutory right of way or easement on behalf of the Town in connection with the
operation of a sewer, water or drainage works, or for other purposes, such as trails
or pedestrian or vehicular access;

g. the power to execute a discharge of a statutory right of way or easement referred
to in subsection (f) which is no longer required by the Town or is to be replaced;

h. the power to enter into a lease or license of real property or a renewal or
amendment of a lease or license of real property necessary or convenient for the
operation and maintenance of the works or activities of the Town;

i. despite subsection (h), the delegation of authority under subsection (h) does not
include a lease or license of real property having a term, including all extensions
or rights of renewal, greater than 2 years.

Powers and Duties of the Director of Financial Services

14.  The Director of Financial Services has powers, duties and function applicable to the
Financial Officer in accordance with Section 149 of the Community Charter and other
provisions applicable to the Financial Officer in the Community Charter or any other
enactments.

15.  The Director of Financial Services is authorized to administer any system of discount,
interest, penalty, payment and refund of fees established by bylaw.

Powers and Duties of the Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture

16.  Council hereby delegates to the Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture the following
powers, duties and functions:
a. approving Special Events on land reserved, dedicated, or held for park purposes,
where such use is consistent with the Zoning Bylaw and any restrictions on title;
b. approving Special Occasion Licences pertaining to the aforementioned Special
Events obtained in accordance with the Liquor Control and Licensing Act, RSBC
1996, c. 26.

17.  The Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture is hereby authorized to administer any
system of discount, interest, penalty, payment, and refund of fees associated with any
parks or recreation facility or program, pursuant to the Town of Ladysmith Community
Centre and Facilities Fees and Charges Bylaw 2015, No. 1884 in accordance with
applicable policies established from time to time by Council.

Powers and Duties of the Director of Infrastructure Services

18.  Council hereby delegates to the Director of Infrastructure Services the powers, duties and
functions with respect to approving the location, designation and control of on-street
parking and loading areas, in accordance with the conditions specified in Streets and
Traffic Bylaw No. 1309.

Powers and Duties of the Director of Development Services

19.  Council hereby delegates to the Director of Development Services the powers, duties and
functions to issue development permits for signage and fagade improvements, and issue
amendments to development permits.

Powers and Duties of Approving Officer

20.  Council hereby delegates to the Approving Officer the powers, duties, and functions
under section 512(2) of the Local Government Act to approve the subdivision of land into
parcels, including Panhandle Parcels, that do not have a minimum highway frontage
greater than:

a. 10% of the perimeter of the parcel that fronts the highway; and
b. the minimum highway frontage required by the Town of Ladysmith
Subdivision and Development Servicing Bylaw 13, No. 1834.
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Delegation of Purchasing Authority

21.  Council hereby delegates all of the powers, duties and functions of Council to authorize
the execution of contracts and purchases of goods and services on behalf of the Town to
the Department Director for the department for which the goods and services are to be
provided, as approved in the Financial Plan, and subject to the monetary limits set out in
Schedule ‘B’, and the Town’s Purchasing Policy as adopted by Council and amended
from time to time, and any applicable enactments or the New West Trade Partnership
Agreement.

Delegation to Persons Holding Position

22.  Where this Bylaw delegates a power, duty or function to a Statutory Officer or other
Department Director, the delegation of the power, duty or function is to the person who
holds the position and to any person who is the deputy of that person, or other person
appointed to act in the place of that person.

No Delegation by a Delegate

23.  For clarity, a person to whom a power, duty or function has been delegated under this
bylaw has no authority to further delegate to another person any power, duty or function
that has been delegated by this bylaw.

Reconsideration by Council

24. A decision of a delegate may be reconsidered by Council on submission of a written
request for reconsideration to the Director of Corporate Services, within thirty days after
the decision is delivered to or made available to the applicant.

25.  The request for reconsideration must include the following:
a. the applicant’s address for receiving correspondence related to the request for
reconsideration;
a copy of the written decision;
reasons why the applicant wishes the decision to be reconsidered by Council;
the decision which the applicant requests be made by Council;
reasons in support of the decision requested from Council; and
a copy of any documents which support the applicant’s request for
reconsideration by Council.

e oo o

26. At the reconsideration of a decision, the applicant is entitled to be heard by Council in
person or by a representative.

27.  The Council may, following completion of its reconsideration, do one or more of the
following:
a. confirm all or part of the delegate’s decision;
b. setaside all or part of the delegate’s decision;
c. amend the delegate’s decision or make a new decision.

28.  The Council may adjourn a reconsideration under this section.
Notice of Reconsideration
29. The Director of Corporate Services must, upon receiving an application for
reconsideration:
a. place the request for reconsideration on the agenda for a regular meeting of
Council to be held at least two weeks after the date on which the request for
reconsideration is delivered to the Director of Corporate Services;
b. notify the applicant of the date for reconsideration by regular mail sent to the
applicant’s address provided under Section 25.

Repeal

30.  Delegation Bylaw 2007, No. 1614 and any and all amendments are hereby repealed.
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READ A FIRST TIME on the day of ,2016
READ A SECOND TIME on the day of , 2016
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of , 2016
ADOPTED on the day of , 2016

Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
OFFICERS AND DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY BYLAW 2016, No. 1905

Schedule ‘A’

In this Bylaw:

“Department Director” Includes the following positions:

Director of Corporate Services

Director of Financial Services

Director of Development Services
Director of Infrastructure Services
Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture

“Department Manager” Includes the following positions:

Manager of Administration
Manager of Public Works
Manager of Accounting Services
Manager of Human Resources
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
OFFICERS AND DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY BYLAW 2016, No. 1905
Schedule ‘B’

This schedule refers to the approvals required for various procurement levels. Other than in
emergencies, budget approval is required before procurement begins.

Value of Purchase or Contract Commitment Authority

Less than $2,999.99 Employees designated by Department
Directors.

$3,000.00 to $9,999.99 Department Managers.

$10,000.00 to $24,999.99 Department Directors.

$25,000.00 to $249,999.99 Approval of the Chief Administrative Officer
together with the Approval of the Director of
Financial Services.

Greater than $250,000.00 Recommendation to award to be approved by
Town Council.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

BYLAW NO. 1910

A bylaw of the Town of Ladysmith to approve the 2015 Audited Financial Statements as authorized

expenditures for 2015.

WHEREAS the Council of the Town of Ladysmith deems it appropriate to approve the 2015

Audited Financial Statements.

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting assembled enacts as

follows:

(D The 2015 Audited Financial Statements for the Town of Ladysmith, attached hereto as
Schedule A, are hereby considered to be authorized expenditures for 2015.

2) This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Town of Ladysmith 2015 Audited Financial

Statements Bylaw 2016, No. 1910."

READ A FIRST TIME on the day of
READ A SECOND TIME on the day of
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of
ADOPTED on the day of

2016

2016

2016

2016

Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
BYLAW NO. 1908

A bylaw establishing the Financial Plan for the years 2016-2020

WHEREAS the Community Charter requires Municipal Councils to prepare and adopt, by
bylaw, a financial plan;

NOW THEREFORE. the Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting assembled
enacts as follows:

Administration

(1)  Schedule “A” attached hereto and made part of the bylaw is hereby adopted and
shall be the Financial Plan for the Town of Ladysmith for the five years ending the
31% of December, 2020.

(2)  Schedule “B” attached hereto and made part of the bylaw is hereby adopted and

shall be the statement of objectives and policies for the Town of Ladysmith for the
five years ending the 31% of December 2020.

Repeal
(3)  The “Town of Ladysmith Financial Plan Bylaw 2015, No. 1878” is hereby repealed.
Citation

(4)  This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as: “Town of Ladysmith Financial Plan
Bylaw 2016, No. 1908”.

READ A FIRST TIME on the day of ,
READ A SECOND TIME on the day of R
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of R
ADOPTED on the day of ,

Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)

85



Bylaw No. 1908 Page2
Schedule ‘A’ of Bylaw 1908
2016 — 2020 Financial Plan
2016 2017 018 2019 020

REVENUES:

Revenue From Property Tax Values 7,685,704 8,252,595 8,530,815 9,008,278 9,345,009

Revenue From Grants in Lieu 162,379 163,745 165,126 165,681 169,049

Revenue From Parcel Taxes 1,778,053 2,082,394 2,380,332 2,680,164 2,981,897

Revenue From Fees & Charges 3,487,239 3,575,719 3,706,676 3,639,845 3,677,131

Revenue From Other Sources 12,562,040 1,203,556 863,491 2,638,616 1,843,816

25,675,415 15,278,009 15,646,440 18,134,584 18,020,902

EXPENSES:

General Operating Expense 9,327,314 9,493,597 9,719,565 9,885,193 10,104,939

Sanitary Sewer Operating Expenses 880,701 984,600 1,059,293 1,080,479 1,044,866

Water Operating Expenses 664,557 672,878 971,334 978,624 998,225

Interest Payments 685,833 831,688 834,705 837,783 840,921

Amortization 2,485,372 2,526,469 2,567,980 2,610,322 2,653,511
Annual Surplus/Deficit 11,631,638 768,777 493,563 2,742,183 2,378,440
Add back:

Amortization 2,485,372 2,526,469 2,567,980 2,610,322 2,653,511
Capital Expenditures

General Capital 3,014,897 1,266,533 1,269,564 10,296,756 1,060,000

Sanitary Sewer Capital 6,801,408 960,000 360,000 360,000 360,000

Water Capital 14,643,605 602,000 5,475,000 4,040,000 2,200,000
Proceeds from New Debt (7,635,000) 0 (4,389,875) (10,867,556) {1,000,000})
Principal Payments 793,650 902,224 904,987 907,804 655,630
Transfers from DCC's & Reserves (743,500) (441,920) (835,125) (298,400) {60,000)
Transfer to/from Own Funds (2,758,050) 6,409 276,992 913,901 1,816,321

Financial Plan Balance
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Schedule ‘B’ of Bylaw No. 1908

Town of Ladysmith 2016 - 2020 Financial Plan
Statement of Objectives and Policies

In accordance with Section 165(3.1) of the Community Charter, the Town of Ladysmith (Town) is
required to include in the Five Year Financial Plan, objectives and policies regarding each of the
following:
1. The proportion of total revenue that comes from each of the funding sources described in
Section 165(7) of the Community Charter,;
2. The distribution of property taxes among the property classes, and
3. The use of permissive tax exemptions.

Funding Sources

Table 1 shows the proportion of total revenue proposed to be raised from each funding source in
2016. Council currently has no specific policy surrounding the proportion of total revenue to come
from each funding source. Property taxes form the greatest proportion of revenue. As a revenue
source, property taxation offers a number of advantages, for example, it is simple to administer and
it is fairly easy for residents to understand. It offers a stable and reliable source of revenue for
services that are difficult or undesirable to fund on a user-pay basis. These include services such
as general administration, fire protection, police services, bylaw enforcement and street lighting.

User fees and charges form a large portion of planned revenue. Many services can be measured
and charged on a user-pay basis. Services where fees and charges can be easily administered
include water and sewer usage, building permits, business licenses, and sale of services - these
are charged on a user-pay basis. User fees attempt to apportion the value of a service to those
who use the service.

Objective .
e The Town will increase the proportion of revenue that is received from user fees and charges
until the fees and charges more closely meet the costs incurred to provide the services.

Policies

e The Town will review all user fee levels to ensure they are adequately meeting both the capital
and delivery costs of the service.

e Water and Sanitary Sewer Rates will be reviewed to ensure that appropriate user fees are
charged, rather than taxation, to lessen the burden on its limited property tax base.

e Borrowing will be considered when a capital project will provide benefits to taxpayers over a
long period.

e Pursuant to Council's direction, the Town will build a reserve to fund major capital projects.
This is done by transferring a minimum of 10% prior year's municipal tax levy to General
Capital projects as well as setting aside a further 5% for asset replacement.

Tahle 1: Sources of Revenue

Revenue Source 2016 % fotal

Property Taxes 7,685,704 20.44%
Grants in Lieu 162,379 0.43%
Parcel Taxes 1,778,053 4.73%
User fees & Charges 3,487,239 9.27%
Other Sources 243,500 0.65%
Borrowing 7,635,000 20.30%
Government Grants 12,318,540 32.76%
DCCs & Reserves 743,500 1.98%
Own Funds 3,552,383 9.44%
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Distribution of Property Tax Rates

Table 2 outlines the distribution of property taxes among the property classes. The residential
property class provides the largest proportion of property tax revenue. This is appropriate as this
class also forms the largest portion of the assessment base and consumes the majority of Town
services.

Objectives
s The amount of taxes to be collected from each of the classes will be reviewed each year.

Policies

s Supplement, where possible, revenues from user fees and charges to help to offset the burden
on the entire property tax base.

e The amount of taxation to come from Class 4 Major industry will remain at $970,952.

e The increase to Class 6 Business/Other will be half of the increase to Class 1 Residential after
non-market change.

e Continue to maintain and encourage economic development initiatives designed to attract more
light industry, retail and commercial businesses to invest in the community. Align the
distribution of tax rates among the property classes with the social and economic goals of the
community, particularly to encourage economic and environmental sustainability opportunities.

e Regularly review and compare the Town’s distributions of tax burden relative to other
municipalities in British Columbia.

Table 2: Distribution of 2016 Property Tax Rates

2016
Property Class Pro;/;r(:; -'ll-'gg(aa:tion
Residential (1) 72.07%
Utilities (2) 0.41%
Supportive Housing (3) 0.00%
Major Industry (4) 12.08%
Light Industry (5) 0.80%
Business and Other (6) 14.35%
Managed Forest Land (7) 0.00%
Recreation/Non-profit (8) 0.28%
Farmland (9) 0.01%
Total 100%

Permissive Tax Exemptions

The Town provides permissive tax exemptions. The Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw 2015,

No.1890, adopted on October 13, 2015, contains of list of property exempt from taxation for 2016.

Some of the eligibility criteria for permissive tax exemptions include the following:

o The tax exemption must demonstrate benefit to the community and residents
of the Town by enhancing the quality of life (economically, socially and culturally) within the
community.

e The goals, policies and principles of the organization receiving the exemption must not be
inconsistent or in conflict with those of the Town.

e The organization receiving the exemption must be a registered non-profit society, as the
support of the municipality will not be used for commercial and private gain.

e Permissive tax exemptions will be considered in conjunction with: (a) other assistance being
provided by the Town; (b) the potential demands for Town services or infrastructure arising
from the property; and (c) the amount of revenue that the Town will lose if the exemption is
granted.

Objective

e The Town will continue to provide permissive tax exemptions to some non-profit societies. The
Town has also expanded its offering of permissive tax exemptions to include revitalization tax
exemptions. It also intends to offer permissive tax exemptions targeted at green development
for the purposes of encouraging development that will meet our Climate Action Charter
commitments.

Policies
e Expand the permissive tax exemption policy to include eligibility requirements for green
revitalization tax exemptions.
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L]

Develop a revitalization tax exemption program which details the kinds of green activities that
the exemption program will target.

Integrate the green revitalization tax exemption program into the Town’s existing economic
initiatives as a means of attracting retail and commercial businesses to further invest in the
community.

Continue the use of the revitalization tax exemption for economic revitalization in order to
encourage the commercial and industrial redevelopment of specific areas.

Table 3: Utilization of Reserves, Development Cost Charges and Surplus for 2016

Source % of Dollar

Total Value
Development Cost Charges - Roads 4% 168,000
Gas Tax Funds 13% 575,500
Surplus 83% 3,552,383
Total $4,295,883
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
BYLAW NO. 1909

A bylaw for the levying of rates for Municipal, Hospital and Regional District purposes for the year
2016.

WHEREAS the Council of the Town of Ladysmith shall, pursuant to the Community Charter, in
each year, adopt a bylaw to impose rates on taxable land and improvements according to
their assessed value to provide the money required for purposes specified in the Charter;

NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting
assembled enacts as follows:

Administration

1. The tax rates for the year 2016 shown on Schedule “A”, attached to and forming part of this
Bylaw, shall be imposed on the assessed value of all the land and improvements within the
Town of Ladysmith for the following purposes of;
(a) The Town of Ladysmith General Municipal Purposes — Column ‘A’;
b) The Cowichan Valley Regional District — Column ‘B’;
(c) The Cowichan Valley Regional District Hospital — Column ‘C’,

Citation

2. This bylaw may be cited as the "Town of Ladysmith Tax Rates Bylaw 2015, No. 1879".

READ A FIRST TIME on the day of , 2016
READ A SECOND TIME on the day of , 2016
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of , 2016
ADOPTED on the day of , 2016

Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)
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Page 2

Town of Ladysmith Tax Rates Bylaw 2016, No.1909
Schedule “A”

Tax Rates (Dollars of Tax per $1,000 Net Taxable Value)

A =il <

Cowichan C‘:,";:f;‘;“

PROPERTY CLASS Municipal Re‘;:f:g’al Reglonal
District | ' et

1 | Residential 5.4935| 0.8611 | 0.5820
2 | Utilities 36.9289 | 3.0139 | 2.0370
3 | Supportive Housing 5.4935| 0.8611 | 0.5820
4 | Major Industry 104.8125 | 2.9277 | 1.9787
5 | Light Industry 18.5725 | 2.9277 | 1.9787
6 | Business/Other 14.7718 | 2.1097 | 1.4259
7 | Managed Forest 39.7959 | 2.5833 | 1.7460
8 | Rec Non Profit 3.3956 | 0.8611 | 0.5820
9 | Farm 33.3357 | 0.8611 | 0.5820
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
BYLAW NO. 1906

A bylaw to impose a water parcel tax on owners of land in the Town of Ladysmith pursuant to the
provisions of the Community Charter.

WHEREAS the Council of the Town of Ladysmith is empowered by the Community Charter to
impose and levy a water parcel tax to meet the cost of works and services that benefit land
within the Municipality; and

WHEREAS certain costs have been or are to be incurred by the Town of Ladysmith in
constructing and improving the water system of the Town; and

WHEREAS it is deemed essential and expedient to impose and levy a water parcel tax on land
benefiting from such improvements to meet such costs;

NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting
assembled enacts as follows:

Definitions
1. In this Bylaw:
"Parcel" Means any lot, block or other area of land in which real property

is held, or into which it is subdivided, as identified in the 2016
Revised Assessment Roll and all amendments thereto.

"Group of Parcels"  Means where a building or improvement is constructed over more
than one parcel of land, those parcels, if contiguous, may be dealt
with by the Assessor as one parcel and be assessed accordingly.

E
(4]

A water parcel tax shall be levied annually against each parcel or group of parcels of land
within the Town of Ladysmith which is capable of being connected to the water system of
the Town, or which is deemed to abut on the said water system.

3. The annual water parcel tax shall be in the amount of Two Hundred and Twenty-five
Dollars ($225.00) per parcel or group of parcels.

4, The water parcel tax imposed by this bylaw on each parcel of land shall be shown by the
Collector on the real property tax roll, and the payment of the water parcel tax shall be made
in the same manner, on or before the same dates, as other real property taxes.

5. The water parcel tax shall have the same rights and remedies as other real property taxes.
6. Every water parcel tax assessment roll and every revision thereof shall be considered and

dealt with by a Parcel Tax Roll Review Panel appointed pursuant to the provisions of the
Community Charter.

Repeal
7. "Water Parcel Tax Bylaw, 2015, No. 1876" is hereby repealed.

Citation
8. This bylaw may be cited as "Water Parcel Tax Bylaw 2016, No. 1906".

READ A FIRST TIME on the 4% dayof April, 2016
READ A SECOND TIME on the 45 day of April, 2016
READ A THIRD TIME on the 4% dayof April, 2016
ADOPTED on the day of

Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
BYLAW NO. 1907

A bylaw to impose a sewer parcel tax on owners of land in the Town of Ladysmith, pursuant to the
provisions of the Community Charter.

WHEREAS the Council of the Town of Ladysmith is empowered the Community Charter to
impose and levy a sewer parcel tax to meet the cost of worksand ~ services that benefit land
within the Municipality; and

WHEREAS certain costs have or will be incurred by the Town of Ladysmith in constructing and
improving the sewer system of the Town; and

WHEREAS it is deemed essential and expedient to impose and levy a sewer parcel tax on land
benefitting from such improvements to meet such costs;

NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Town of Ladysmith in open meeting
assembled enacts as follows:

Definitions
1. In this Bylaw:

"Parcel" Means any lot, block or other area of land in which real property
is held, or into which it is subdivided, as identified in the 2016
Revised Assessment Roll and all amendments thereto.

"Group of Parcels"”  Means where a building or improvement is constructed over more
than one parcel of land, those parcels, if contiguous, may be dealt
with by the Assessor as one parcel and be assessed accordingly.

Levy
2. A parcel tax shall be levied annually against each parcel or group of parcels of land within

the Town of Ladysmith which is capable of being connected to the sewer system of the
Town, or which is deemed to abut on the said sewer system.

3. The annual sewer parcel tax shall be in the amount of Two Hundred Sixty-nine Dollars
($269.00) per parcel or group of parcels.

4. The sewer parcel tax imposed by this bylaw on each parcel of land shall be shown by the
Collector on the real property tax roll, and the payment of the parcel tax shall be made in the
same manner, on or before the same dates, as other real property taxes.

5. The sewer parcel tax shall have the same rights and remedies as other real property taxes.
6. Every parcel tax assessment roll and every revision thereof shall be considered and dealt

with by a Parcel Tax Roll Review Panel appointed pursuant to the provisions of the
Community Charter.

Repeal
7. "Sewer Parcel Tax Bylaw 2015, No. 1877" is hereby repealed.

Citation
8. This bylaw may be cited as "Sewer Parcel Tax Bylaw 2016, No. 1907".

READ A FIRST TIME on the 4% dayof April, 2016
READ A SECOND TIME on the 4% dayof April, 2016
READ A THIRD TIME on the 4% dayof April, 2016
ADOPTED on the day of

Mayor (A. Stone)

Celpdrate Officer (S. Bowden)
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March 30, 2015

Clayton Postings

Director of Parks, Recreation & Culture
Town of Ladysmith

P.0. Box 220

Ladysmith, BC

VoG 1A2

Dear Clayton:

As you know we have had some serious theft problems in the area of the Car Shop —our
heritage boat restoration shop. Justin the last year we have been subject to three successful
break-ins and a number of failed attempts. We lost a battery charger for our golf cart

($1500). They came back about two weeks later and took the batteries ($800) and a few weeks
later we lost a number of tools. They can’t seem to get into the Car Shop itself but the out
buildings are easy pickings. We have replaced a number of padlocks and beefed up hinges but to
no avail. We have what we believe is a solution.

We would like to locate a shipping container (20" X 7’ X 8') at the north end of the Car Shop (see
attached photo). This will do two things: provide clean, dry, secure storage and in preparation
for the locating of the container our volunteers will undertake a substantial cleanup of the
surrounding area. They would remove the red and white wooden shed and get rid of the
garbage that is dumped there. My hope is that you will continue to work with us as you have by
taking this request forward. Let me know if there are any permits required for this “solution”
and | will be happy to apply as required.

Regards,

Rod Smith
Managing Director, Ladysmith Maritime Society
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